
CITY OF STAMFORD

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

 CITY ENGINEER 

LOUIS CASOLO, JR., P.E.
Email: LCasolo@StamfordCT.gov

MAYOR 
CAROLINE SIMMONS

DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS

MATT QUINONES
Email: MQuinones@StamfordCT.gov

May 16, 2024

To: Vineeta Mathur  Principal Planner

From: 

Subject:

1308 East Main Street - Nautilus Botanicals EJV1 LLC,1308 East Main St LL

The Engineering Bureau received REVISED documents for a Special Permit & Coastal Site Plan Review 

application for a second-story addition and the operation of a hybrid cannabis retail facility servicing both medical 

patients and adult-use consumers. The Property is located within the C-N Zone.

The following documents were reviewed:

-SD-12.0 Site Plan (Revised 5/1/24), Layout Plans (Revised 5/2/24), Exterior Elevations (Revised 5/2/24) Nautilus 

Botanicals EJV1 LLC, 1308 East Main Street by L'ARC Architects, LLC dated 3/19/24

-Flood Vent, Nautilus Botanicals EJV1 LLC by L'ARC Architects, LLC dated 3/20/24

-Certification of Flood Elevations, 1308 East Main Street, by Hilary Donald of L'ARC Architects, LLC

-Stormwater Management Standards - Exemption Request Form dated 4/30/24

-Stormwater Impact Statement - 1308 East Main Street by Curt Lowenstein, P.E. of Landtech dated 4/30/24

-Responses to Engineering Bureau's plan review memo dated 4/26/24, "1308 East Main Street - Applications for 

Special Permit and Coastal Site Plan Review Project No. 224-16" by Leonard M. Braman of Wofsey, Rosen, 

Kweskin & Kuriansky, LLP dated 4/30/24

The Engineering Bureau has determined that some comments from the 4/26/24 plan review memo have not been 

addressed satisfactorily in the aforementioned revised documents. The Engineering Bureau has determined that the 

following items must be addressed prior to Building Permit Issuance:

1) Per the Stamford Drainage Manual, stormwater quality improvements (in the form of Total Suspended Solids 

removal) are required since the parking lot has 6 or more parking spaces. Refer to Section 2.4 of the Drainage 

Manual for additional information. To clarify, the Engineering Bureau is not requesting that the applicant "install 

new underground drainage structures" in the parking lot, as referenced in the response letter to the Engineering 
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Bureau. The requested water quality improvements will improve the quality of stormwater runoff before it is 

discharged into the Noroton River. Although the shed will be removed per EPB's direction, water quality 

improvements are still required.

2) Provide a Topographic Survey, based on the NAVD 88 datum to clearly show the grades on the site, which will 

facilitate the design of feasible water quality improvements.

3) The Stormwater Impact Statement from Curt Lowenstein, P.E. of Landtech dated 4/30/24 must have a P.E. seal.

4) Add a date to the Certificaion of Flood Elevations document.

5) Any future improvements or increase in impervious surface will require review by the Engineering Bureau and 

must comply with the Stormwater Drainage Manual and City policies.

6) The Engineering Bureau reserves the right to make additional comments.

Please contact me at 203-977-4003 with any questions.

Leonard Braman

Robert Clausi

CC: Reg. No. 148
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      April 26, 2024 
 
Stamford Zoning Board 
c/o Vineeta Mathur, Principal Planner  
Stamford Land Use Bureau 
Stamford Government Center 
888 Washington Blvd. – 7th Floor 
Stamford, CT 06901 
 
RE: Review and Comments - CSPR for 1308 East Main Street 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
Thank you for referring the above-referenced coastal site plan (CSP) application concerning the 
proposed reuse and development of 1308 East Main Street for our review and comment.  Acting 
as the Commissioner’s staff, our office has reviewed the CSP, received on March 28, 2024, for 
consistency with the policies and standards of the Connecticut Coastal Management Act 
(CCMA) and we offer the following comments for consideration with respect to the application.  
 
The subject site is located in the floodway of the Noroton River.  The existing building was 
constructed in the late 1950s and the former use of the existing building was a restaurant.  The 
applicants (Nautilus Botanicals EJV1, LLC and 1308 East Main Street, LLC) propose to reuse 
this property for a hybrid cannabis retail facility, adding a second story to the back portion of the 
existing building and installing flood vents in first floor area, and performing additional property 
improvements.  The bottom floor will be used for materials storage and the top floor will be used 
for retail and business functions.   
 
Prudent coastal management recognizes and plans for the resources, uses, and potential hazards 
present at each site.  Our primary concern focuses on the location of the exiting building within 
the floodway of the Noroton River.  The risk associated with location of a building within the 
floodway portion of a delineated floodplain is much greater than that of the flood fringe area of 
the floodplain (which is still a high hazard concern).  Accordingly, Section 15.B.4.b(1) of 
Stamford’s local floodplain management regulations states:   
 

Provisions Applicable to Designated Regulatory Floodways.  In all designated regulatory 
floodways the following special standards shall apply, in addition to the requirements of 
Subsection 15.B.4.a above: (1) Encroachments. Encroachments (including filling, new 
construction, substantial improvements and other Development within the adopted 
regulatory floodway) that would result in any (0.00 ft.) increase in flood levels during the 
occurrence of the base flood discharge shall be prohibited. The provision of proof that 
there shall be no (0.00 ft.) increase in flood levels during occurrence of the base flood 
discharge due to the proposed construction or encroachment shall be the responsibility of 
the applicant and shall be based on hydrologic and hydraulic studies, performed in 
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accordance with standard engineering practice, and certification, with supporting 
technical data, by a Connecticut Registered Professional Engineer.   
 

The application does not appear to acknowledge that this property and structure are within a 
floodway and has not provided the required analysis to show that all proposed building retrofits 
and property improvements will result in a no-rise (0.00) of flood levels.  Thus, the applicants 
will need to provide the Zoning Board with a thorough analysis with respect to any proposed 
development resulting from this project and show a no-rise (0.00) to the floodway. 
 
In addition, we recommend that the Zoning Board require the applicants provide a flood 
contingency plan to demonstrate how retail materials and all other items will be removed from 
designated storage areas prior to a flood event occurring.  We also recommend that the Zoning 
Board require the applicants submit a structural analysis of the building to demonstrate that the 
existing building and its foundation can accommodate the proposed retrofits, including the 
installation of flood vents.  This analysis should be prepared and certified by a professional 
structural engineer. 
 
Finally, the application materials do not include any discussion of stormwater management on 
the site, which is highly impervious and located adjacent to the river. Therefore, we recommend 
that the Board request that the applicant provide information regarding the appropriateness of 
providing stormwater management practices onsite. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to review the CSP for 1308 East Main Street.  We hope these 
comments are helpful to the Zoning Board and the applicants to ensure that the proposed 
redevelopment on the site located within a FEMA delineated floodway is consistent with the 
policies and standards of the CCMA. Should you have any questions regarding this letter or any 
other Long Island Sound-related matter, please feel free to contact Karen Michaels of my staff at 
karen.michaels@ct.gov. 
 
      Sincerely, 
 
 
 
      Brian Thompson, Director 

DEEP Land and Water Resources Division 
BPT/kam 
 
 
cc: Stamford Coastal File – 1308 East Main Street 
 FEMA: Ryan Fisher, Ryan.fisher@fema.dhs.gov  

 John Grace, John.grance@fema.dhs.gov 
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April 27, 2024 

 

Ms. Vineeta Mathur 

Associate Planner 

Land Use Bureau 

Stamford Government Center 

888 Washington Blvd. 

Stamford, CT 06901 

 

Subject: Application 224-16 – Applications by Nautilus Botanicals EJV1 LLC and 1308 

East Main Street LLC for work at 1308 East Main Street 

 

Dear Ms. Mathur: 

 

The Stamford Harbor Management Commission (SHMC) has reviewed the above-referenced ap-

plications for Special Permit and Coastal Site Plan Review submitted to the Zoning Board by Nau-

tilus Botanicals EJV1 LLC and 1308 East Main Street LLC (the Applicants), c/o Leonard Braman, 

Wofesey Rosen Kweskin & Kuriansky, LLP, 600 Summer St., Stamford, CT.  The Applicants 

seek approval to convert an existing ±4,300 square-foot restaurant at 1308 East Main Street, Stam-

ford, into a hybrid cannabis retail facility serving both medical patients and adult-use consumers.  

All proposed work is within the interior of the existing structure, including modifications to im-

prove flood resiliency of interior uses.  Our review is in accordance with requirements set forth in 

the General Statutes, Stamford Code of Ordinances, and Stamford Harbor Management Plan. 

 

The SHMC discussed this matter during its meeting on April 16, 2024 and approved a motion to 

find the Applicants’ proposal is consistent with the Harbor Management Plan.  This finding is 

based on the understanding that the proposed project is expected to reduce the vulnerability of 

interior building uses to coastal flood hazards. 

 

Please be advised that the SHMC reserves its right to continue to review the proposed project and 

provide additional comments at such time as the proposal may be modified, additional information 

is provided, or the proposal is the subject of a public hearing. 
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If you have any questions or require any additional information, please contact me at (315) 651-

0070 or dortelli@stamfordct.gov. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Dr. Damian Ortelli 
Dr. Damian Ortelli 

Chairman, Stamford Harbor Management Commission 

 

cc: 

Sam Abernethy, SHMC Application Review Committee Chair 

Leonard Braman, Applicants’ representative 

Karen Michaels, CT DEEP Land and Water Resources Division 

Matthew Quinones, City of Stamford Director of Operations 

Maria Vazquez-Goncalves, SHMC Administrator 
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